#### **TOWN OF SIMSBURY**

#### DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 933 HOPMEADOW STREET SIMSBURY, CT 06070

#### **INVITATION TO BID**

**FOR** 

### RANDOM CRACK SEALING FOR BITUMINOUS PAVEMENTS VARIOUS LOCATIONS, SIMSBURY

The Town of Simsbury is soliciting bids for random crack sealing services for bituminous pavement at various locations within the Town of Simsbury. The scope of work is to include furnishing all labor, materials, equipment necessary for the work as specified.

Sealed proposals will be accepted by Sean Kimball, Director of Finance, 933 Hopmeadow Street (Rt. 10/202), Simsbury, CT until 10:00 a.m., Thursday, August 17, 2017.

Specifications and bidding documents may be obtained electronically via the Town's web site at the following link: <a href="www.simsbury-ct.gov/finance/pages/public-bids-and-rfp">www.simsbury-ct.gov/finance/pages/public-bids-and-rfp</a>. Bid documents will not be mailed or faxed.

#### **Contents:**

De	epartment of Public Works – Invitation to Bid Random Crack Sealing for Bituminous Paveme	ent
STA	NDARD INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS	4
1.	Project Overview.	4
2.	Key Event Dates:	4
3.	Bid Submission Instructions:	4
4.	Questions:	5
5.	Presumption of Bidder Being Fully Informed:	5
6.	Pre-Bid Conference:	5
7.	Interpretation of Acceptable Work:	5
8.	Tax Exemptions:	5
9.	Insurance Requirements:	6
10.	Substitution for Name Brands:	6
11.	Awarding the Bid:	7
12.	Rejection and/or Cancellation of Bids:	7
13.	Delivery Arrangements.	7
14.	Bid Bond	7
15.	Performance Bond.	7
16.	W-9 Form	7
17.	Submittals:	7
18.	Agreement Documents:	7
BID	FORM	8
1.	Table of Streets to be Crack Sealed:	9
2.	Bid Form Information:	12
3.	Bidders Qualification Statement	12
4.	Proposed Subcontractors	13
5.	Non-Collusion Affidavit	16
GEN	NERAL SPECIFICATIONS FOR HOT CRACK SEAL	17
A.	Scope of Work	14
B.	Materials	14
C.	Equipment	14
D.	Preparation	15
E.	Preparation of Sealant	15
F.	Installation of Sealant	15
G.	Workmanship	15
H.	Scheduling Work	15
I.	Traffic Control.	15
J.	Measurement and Payment2	16

RA	NDOM CRACK SEALING AGREEMENT	20
1.	Code of Ethics	20
2.	Conflict of Interest	22
3.	Equal Employment Opportunity Law and Regulation Including EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 3	23
GE	NERAL CONDITIONS	26
1.	DEFINITIONS	28
2.	PAYMENT	30
3.	PERMITS DURATION	31
4.	SUPERVISION	31
5.	LAYOUT	31
6.	SITE WORK	30
7.	STANDARDS	30
8.	CHANGES IN WORK	30
9.	CORRECTION OF WORK AFTER FINAL PAYMENT	30
10.	INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS	31
11.	OWNER'S RIGHT TO DOWORK	32
12.	ACCEPTANCE OF FINAL PAYMENT AS RELEASE	32
13.	CONTRACT SECURITY	32
14.	ASSIGNMENT	33
15.	DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS	33
16.	MATERIALS, WORKMANSHIP, SERVICES, AND FACILITIES	34
17.	PROTECTION OF WORK AND PROPERTY	35
18.	CHANGES IN CONTRACT PRICE	36
19.	TIME FOR COMPLETION	36
20.	SUSPENSION OF WORK, TERMINATION AND DELAY	37
21.	INDEMNIFICATION	41
22.	SEPARATE CONTRACTS	41
23.	SUBCONTRACTING	40
24.	GUARANTY	41
25.	DISPUTE RESOLUTION	41
26.	TAXES	42
SUP	PPLEMENTAL GENERAL CONDITIONS	43
SPE	CIAL PROVISIONS	45

## STANDARD INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS RANDOM CRACK SEALING FOR BITUMINOUS PAVEMENTS VARIOUS LOCATIONS, SIMSBURY 06070

#### 1. Project Overview:

The Town of Simsbury is soliciting bids for random crack sealing on various streets in Town. For bids to be considered, it is required that each street be priced out individually on the bid form. A complete list of streets is included in a table with the bid form.

The scope of work for this project includes furnishing all labor, materials and equipment required to complete the random crack sealing of each roadway within the Town as specified.

#### 2. Key Event Dates:

Invitation to Bid Issued 7-27-2017

Pre-Bid Conference None

Bid Opening 8-17-2017

Commencement of Work Within ten (10) calendar days of Notice to Proceed

#### 3. Bid Submission Instructions:

- A. One (1) original and one (1) copy of all bids must be submitted in a sealed envelope with the bidder's name on the outside of the envelope and clearly marked "Sealed Bid for Town of Simsbury Random Crack Sealing". If forwarded by mail or courier, the sealed envelope must be addressed to "Sean Kimball, Director of Finance, 933 Hopmeadow Street (Rt. 10/202), Simsbury, CT 06070". Bids must be at the office of the Director of Finance prior to 10 a.m., Thursday July 27, 2017 (7-27-2017). Postmarks are NOT an acceptable waiver of this policy. Once the first bid is opened, all bids are deemed final and no corrections or alterations may be made.
- B. Ditto marks or words such as "SAME" must not be used for the bid to be considered.
- C. All information must be submitted in blue ink or typewritten. Errors, alterations or corrections must be shown on both the original and all required copies and each must be initialed by the person signing the bid.
- D. Bids are considered valid for ninety (90) days after bids are opened. Bidders may not withdraw, cancel or modify their bid during this ninety (90) day period after bids are opened.
- E. An authorized person representing the legal entity of the bidder must sign bids.

- F. The inability to meet any specified requirement(s) must be stated in writing and attached to the bid form, or written on the bid form. If no exceptions are noted, it shall be assumed that the terms of the Invitation to Bid have been accepted.
- G. The Town of Simsbury reserves the right to waive any minor informality in a bid when such a waiver is in the best interest of the Town.

#### 4. Questions:

Any questions about this project should be directed to: Mr. Thomas J. Roy, Director of Public Works by fax (860) 408-5416, email – <a href="mailto:pubworks@simsbury-ct.gov">pubworks@simsbury-ct.gov</a>, or by mail Department of Public Works, PO Box 495, Simsbury, CT 06070. To receive consideration, such questions must be received at least four (4) business days before the established date for receipt of bids. No oral interpretations shall be made to any respondent as to the meaning of any of the bid documents. Every request for an interpretation shall be made in writing.

The Town will respond to all appropriate questions received via an addendum available to all prospective bidders. Such addenda will become part of this Invitation to Bid and the resulting contract. At least two (2) days prior to the receipt of bids, the Town will post a copy of any addenda to its website, located at: <a href="www.simsbury-ct.gov/finance/pages/public-bids-and-rfp">www.simsbury-ct.gov/finance/pages/public-bids-and-rfp</a>. It shall be the responsibility of each bidder to determine whether addenda have been issued, and if so, to download copies directly from the Town's website.

#### 5. Presumption of Bidder Being Fully Informed:

At the time the first bid is opened, each bidder is presumed to have read and is thoroughly familiar with all bidding documents as well as all contract documents for this project. Failure or omission of the bidder to receive or examine any documentation or information concerning this bid shall in no way relieve any bidder from obligations with respect to their bid.

#### 6. Pre-Bid Conference:

There is no pre-bid conference scheduled for this invitation to bid.

#### 7. Interpretation of Acceptable Work:

The specifications, bidding and contract documents are to be interpreted as meaning those acceptable to the Town of Simsbury. The Town will issue any substantive changes or interpretations in writing as an addendum.

#### 8. Tax Exemptions:

The bidder shall be aware that the Town of Simsbury is exempt from Federal Excise Taxes and Connecticut Sales and Use Taxes. Appropriate tax exempt forms will be provided to the successful bidder(s) as part of the contract award process.

#### 9. Insurance Requirements:

The firm must carry insurance under which the Town is named as an additional insured, as follows: Such insurance must be by insurance companies licensed to write such insurance in Connecticut against the following risks with the following minimum amounts and minimum durations.

- A. Workman's Compensation, as required by State Statute & \$100,000 employers liability limit.
- B. Public Liability, Bodily Injury Liability and Property Damage Liability as follows:

Injury or death of one person: \$2,000,000

Injury to more than one person in

a single accident: \$1,000,000

Property damage in one accident: \$1,000,000

Property damage in all accidents: \$2,000,000

Excess/Umbrella Liability: \$1,000,000

C. Automobile and Truck (Vehicular) Public Liability, Bodily Injury Liability and Property Damage Liability as follows:

Injury or death of one person: \$1,000,000

Injury to more than one person in

a single accident: \$1,000,000 Property damage in one accident: \$1,000,000 Property damage in all accidents: \$1,000,000

Insurance under B, and C above must provide for a 30 day notice to the Town of cancellation/or restrictive amendment.

Insurance under B and C above must be for the whole duration of the contract and for twelve (12) months after acceptance of the project by the Town.

Subcontractors must carry A, B, and C in the same amounts as above for the duration of the project and until acceptance by the Town.

Certificates of insurance must be submitted to the Director of Public Works prior to the signing of the contract and within ten days of notification of award of contract. Should any insurance expire or be terminated during the period in which the same is required by this contract, the Director of Public Works shall be notified and such expired or terminated insurance must be replaced with new insurance and a new certificate furnished to the Director of Public Works.

Failure to provide the required insurance and certificates may, at the option of the Town, be held to be a willful and substantial breach of this contract.

#### 10. Substitution for Name Brands:

Should brand name items appear in this bid, the bidder must attach specifications for any substitutions and explain how the substitution compares with the specifications of the named brand. The decision on whether to use the substitution or the named brand rests solely with the Town of Simsbury.

#### 11. Awarding the Bid:

The Town reserves the right to accept any bid or any part of bids, to reject any, all, or any part of bids, and to waive formalities and informalities in the bidding process. The Town at its discretion will award the bid to the lowest responsible bidder. That bidder is the person or firm who is qualified and competent to do the work, whose past performance is satisfactory to the Town and whose bid documents comply with the procedural requirements stated herein.

#### 1 . Rejection and/or Cancellation of Bids:

The Town reserves the right to reject or cancel any and all bids, or any part of any or all bids, if such action is deemed to be in the best interest of the Town.

**14. Delivery Arrangements:** Not applicable

15. Bid Bond: Not applicable

**16. Performance Bond:** Not applicable

#### 17. W-9 Form

The successful bidder must provide the Town of Simsbury with a completed W-9 Form prior to commencing work.

#### 1 . Submittals:

The Bidder shall, as soon as practicable, but not exceed fifteen (15) calendar days, after notification of selection of the award of the bid, furnish to the Owner, in writing the following:

- A. Designation of the Work to be performed by the Contractor's own forces
- B. Names of the manufacturers, products and suppliers of the principal items of materials proposed for the work
- C. Project work schedule

#### 1. Agreement Documents:

The Agreement Documents are defined as:

- The Standard Instructions to Bidders
- The Agreement as executed
- The General Specifications
- Any Addenda, if Issued

#### END OF STANDARD INSTRUCTION TO BIDDERS

# BID FORM RANDOM CRACK SEALING FOR BITUMINOUS PAVEMENTS

Random Crack Sealing 2017

Street Name	From Street	To Street	Length (Feet)	Width	Square Yards	Total Cost
ARROWHEAD DRIVE	W MOUNTAIN RD	WILDWOOD LN	3,320.55	26.00	9,592.71	
AVERY WAY	SEMINARY RD	CUL DE SAC	845.60	27.00	2,536.80	
BANBURY ROAD	W MOUNTAIN RD	ROCKLYN CT	1,903.05	26.00	5,497.70	-
BRANCH BROOK DRIVE	RICHARD RD	CORNFIELD RD	1,003.52	26.00		
			,		2,899.05	
BRANCH BROOK DRIVE	CUEARTIELD RD	FIRETOWN RD	473.77	26.00	1,368.68	
CASE CIRCLE	CLEARFIELD RD	CASE CIR	1,673.66	22.00	4,091.17	-
CLEARFIELD ROAD	WATSON DR	CASE CIR	291.42	24.00	777.13	-
CLEARFIELD ROAD	CASE CIR	HARVEST HILL RD	776.09	24.00	2,069.58	-
CORNFIELD ROAD	BRANCH BROOK DR	RICHARD RD	665.76	28.00	2,071.25	-
CRESCENT WAY	STRATTON BROOK RD	STRATTON BROOK RD	1,323.38	30.00	4,411.27	
CROFT LANE	SAND HILL RD	CUL DE SAC	1,051.09	28.00	3,270.06	•
DRUMLIN ROAD	TALISMAN DR	DRUMLIN RD	2,838.13	26.00	8,199.03	-
DRUMLIN ROAD	DRUMLIN RD	TALISMAN DR	2,129.18	26.00	6,150.96	-
DRUMLIN ROAD	CANTON RD	DRUMLIN RD	601.37	26.00	1,737.31	\$
EAST WEATOGUE STREET	RIVERSIDE RD	HEATHER LN	2,210.59	27.00	6,631.78	\$
EAST WEATOGUE STREET	HEATHER LN	TALCOTT MOUNTAIN RD	823.54	27.00	2,470.61	\$
EAST WEATOGUE STREET	TALCOTT MOUNTAIN RD	BRADLEY RD	609.18	31.00	2,098.28	\$
EAST WEATOGUE STREET	RIVERSIDE RD	RAMP	4,048.69	31.00	13,945.48	\$
EAST WEATOGUE STREET	BRADLEY RD	RIVERSIDE RD	658.52	31.00	2,268.22	\$
ERICA LANE	W MOUNTAIN RD	CUL DE SAC	812.46	24.00	2,166.57	\$
FARMSTEAD LANE	FARMS VILLAGE RD	MEADOWLARK RD	1,633.46	26.00	4,718.88	\$
FARMSTEAD LANE	MEADOWLARK RD	STRATTON BROOK RD	493.69	26.00	1,426.20	\$
FIRETOWN ROAD	NORTHGATE	OLD FARMS RD	1,683.46	25.00	4,676.27	\$
FIRETOWN ROAD	NORTHGATE	NORTHGATE	636.45	25.00	1,767.90	\$
FIRETOWN ROAD	TOWN EDGE	NORTHGATE	1,828.63	28.00	5,689.07	\$
GATES LANE	WHITCOMB DR	CUL DE SAC	1,165.72	25.00	3,238.10	\$
GRIFFIN STREET	SEMINARY RD	MASSACO ST	620.30	23.00	1,585.20	\$
HEDGEHOG LANE	WESTLEDGE RD	SADDLE RIDGE DR	4,006.36	24.00	10,683.62	\$
HEDGEHOG LANE	VICTORIA LN	OLD FARMS RD	653.03	24.00	1,741.40	\$
HEDGEHOG LANE	SADDLE RIDGE DR	VICTORIA LN	1,780.77	24.00	4,748.71	\$
HOMESTEAD ROAD	WATSON DR	HARVEST HILL RD	1,367.69	26.00	3,951.10	\$
HOMESTEAD ROAD	FARMS VILLAGE RD	WATSON DR	584.09	26.00	1,687.39	\$
JOSHUA LANE	OLD FARMS RD	CUL DE SAC	2,449.07	26.00	7,075.10	-
KELLY FARM ROAD	FIRETOWN RD	CUL DE SAC	750.31	26.00	2,167.57	-
LIBRARY LANE	HOPMEADOW ST	EAGLEWOOD LN	359.69	20.00	799.32	-
MASSACO STREET	PHELPSCROFT RD	HUMPHREY ST	562.38	27.00		-
MASSACO STREET	MCLEAN ST	HIGHVIEW RD	364.63	22.00	891.32	-
MASSACO STREET	HUMPHREY ST	GRIFFIN ST	349.78	27.00		-
MASSACO STREET	HIGHVIEW RD	HOPMEADOW ST	804.62	22.00	1,966.84	-
MASSACO STREET	GRIFFIN ST	MCLEAN ST	351.05	22.00		•
MCLEAN STREET	MASSACO ST	SEMINARY RD	618.98	27.00	1,856.93	•
NIMROD ROAD	W MOUNTAIN RD	TOOTIN HILL RD	942.04	21.00	2,198.08	-
NIMROD ROAD	TOOTIN HILL RD	DRIVEWAY #32	860.11	21.00	2,006.91	-
NOTCH ROAD	WILDWOOD LN	CANTON TL	1,734.44	23.00	4,432.45	•
			-,, 9 -,	_5.50	., .52.75	Υ

NOTCH ROAD	W MOUNTAIN RD	WILDWOOD LN	1,586.80	25.00	4,407.77	\$
OAKWOOD ROAD	FIRETOWN RD	PHELPSCROFT RD	1,330.29	23.00	3,399.64	\$
OWENS BROOK BOULEVARD	DOMINIQUE LN	FIRETOWN RD	2,043.65	30.00	6,812.16	\$
OWENS BROOK BOULEVARD	GREAT POND RD	ECHO LN	675.83	30.00	2,252.76	\$
OWENS BROOK BOULEVARD	MICHAEL RD	LIONEL DR	351.16	30.00	1,170.55	\$
OWENS BROOK BOULEVARD	ECHO LN	MICHAEL RD	446.88	30.00	1,489.59	\$
OWENS BROOK BOULEVARD	LIONEL DR	DOMINIQUE LN	465.53	30.00	1,551.78	\$
OWENS BROOK BOULEVARD	OWENS PL	HOPMEADOW ST	623.58	30.00	2,078.60	\$
OWENS BROOK BOULEVARD	FIRETOWN RD	KERR FARM RD	679.98	30.00	2,266.62	\$
OWENS BROOK BOULEVARD	KERR FARM RD	HEARTHSTONE DR	459.18	30.00	1,530.61	\$
OWENS BROOK BOULEVARD	HEARTHSTONE DR	HORSESHOE CIR	579.73	30.00	1,932.43	\$
OWENS BROOK BOULEVARD	HORSESHOE CIR	OWENS BROOK CIR	435.79	30.00	1,452.63	\$
OWENS BROOK BOULEVARD	MUSKET TRL	WINTERSET LN	591.84	30.00	1,972.79	\$
OWENS BROOK BOULEVARD	WINTERSET LN	SOMERSET LN	420.93	30.00	1,403.08	\$
OWENS BROOK BOULEVARD	SOMERSET LN	OWENS PL	1,420.57	30.00	4,735.25	\$
OWENS BROOK BOULEVARD	OWENS BROOK CIR	MUSKET TRL	286.03	30.00	953.44	\$
PETTIBONE DRIVE	DEERFIELD LN	SPRINGBROOK LN	261.14	25.00	725.39	
PHELPS LANE	HOPMEADOW ST	RAILROAD ST	388.80	17.00	734.41	•
PHELPS LANE	RAILROAD ST	IRON HORSE BLVD	201.70	17.00	380.99	\$
PHELPSCROFT ROAD	FAIRVIEW ST	MASSACO ST	274.38	24.00	731.67	\$
PHELPSCROFT ROAD	MASSACO ST	SEMINARY RD	592.81	24.00	1,580.84	\$
PLANK HILL ROAD	PLANK HILL CEMETERY	FIRETOWN RD	2,792.22	27.00	8,376.67	\$
PONDSIDE LANE	STRATTON BROOK RD	CUL DE SAC	1,966.93	26.00	5,682.25	\$
RICHARD ROAD	FIRETOWN RD	CORNFIELD RD	295.24	25.00	820.11	\$
RICHARD ROAD	CORNFIELD RD	BRANCH BROOK DR	369.02	25.00	1,025.04	\$
RICHARD ROAD	BRANCH BROOK DR	DEAD END	163.05	25.00	452.91	\$
ROCKLYN COURT	ROCKLYN DR	ROCKLYN DR	433.82	30.00	1,446.07	\$
ROCKLYN DRIVE	W MOUNTAIN RD	ROCKLYN CT	961.81	25.00	2,671.70	\$
ROCKLYN DRIVE	ROCKLYN CT	ROCKSPRAY LN	766.41	25.00	2,128.91	\$
ROCKLYN DRIVE	ROCKSPRAY LN	BANBURY LN	482.67	25.00	1,340.74	\$
ROCKLYN DRIVE	BANBURY LN	CUL DE SAC	1,424.48	25.00	3,956.90	\$
ROCKSPRAY LANE	ROCKLYN DR	CUL DE SAC	615.05	25.00	1,708.48	\$
STATION STREET	IRON HORSE BLVD	HOPMEADOW ST	392.08	25.00	1,089.12	\$
TALISMAN DRIVE	W MOUNTAIN RD	DRUMLIN RD	519.19	26.00	1,499.88	-
WATSON DRIVE	HOMESTEAD RD	DEAD END	2,110.63	26.00	6,097.38	-
WHITCOMB DRIVE	HOLCOMB ST	GATES LN	622.94	27.00	1,868.82	
WHITCOMB DRIVE	GATES LN	SANTCUARY DR	616.36	27.00	1,849.07	-
WEST MOUNTAIN ROAD	CANTON RD	TALISMAN DR	1,142.33	26.00	3,300.06	·
WEST MOUNTAIN ROAD	ERICA LN	MAUREEN DR	2,803.74	28.00	8,722.74	-
WEST MOUNTAIN ROAD	BUSHY HILL LN	BUSHY HILL RD	870.37	28.00	2,707.82	·
WEST MOUNTAIN ROAD	NOTCH RD	STOCKADE RD	1,133.54	26.00	3,274.66	•
WEST WICONTAIN ROAD	NOTCH ND	JIOCKADE ND	1,133.34	20.00	3,274.00	<b>&gt;</b>

WEST MOUNTAIN ROAD	STOCKADE RD	WILDWOOD RD	431.22	26.00	1,245.74	\$
WEST MOUNTAIN ROAD	MAUREEN DR	BUSHY HILL LN	618.48	28.00	1,924.15	\$
WEST MOUNTAIN ROAD	WILDWOOD RD	ARROWHEAD DR	361.07	26.00	1,043.09	\$
WEST MOUNTAIN ROAD	ROSWELL RD	GREAT MEADOWS	515.02	26.00	1,487.84	\$
WEST MOUNTAIN ROAD	GREAT MEADOWS	CANTON RD	924.54	26.00	2,670.88	\$
WEST MOUNTAIN ROAD	TALISMAN DR	ERICA LN	475.24	28.00	1,478.52	\$
WEST MOUNTAIN ROAD	ARROWHEAD DR	ROSWELL RD	1,024.45	26.00	2,959.52	\$
WHITCOMB ROAD	SANCTUARY DR	FIRETOWN RD	1,376.55	27.00	4,129.65	\$
WHITE OAK LANE	FIRETOWN RD	CUL DE SAC	1,650.74	21.00	3,851.72	\$
WINTERSET LANE	WINTERSET LN-01	WINTERSET LN-01	4,037.04	26.00	11,662.56	\$
WINTERSET LANE	OWENS BROOK BLVD	WINTERSET LN-02	517.22	26.00	1,494.20	\$
WOODCLIFF DRIVE	OLD MEADOW PLAIN RD	WOODCLIFF DR-02	209.26	29.00	674.28	\$
WOODCLIFF DRIVE	WOODCLIFF DR-01	CRANE PL	1,545.24	29.00	4,979.10	\$
WOODCLIFF DRIVE	CRANE PL	WOODCLIFF DR-01	413.01	29.00	1,330.80	\$
		<u>TOTALS</u>	103,357.81		301,670.96	\$

#### **BID FORM**

#### RANDOM CRACK SEALING FOR BITUMINOUS PAVEMENTS

Pursuant to and in compliance with the "Invitation to Bid" and Standard Instructions to Bidders relating thereto, the undersigned, having visited the sites and carefully examined all Bidding Documents and complete General Specifications together with all Addenda issued and received prior to the scheduled closing time for receipt of Bids, hereby offers and agrees as follows:

- To provide all labor, materials, and anything else reasonably necessary to complete all work per the attached specifications.
- If awarded this Contract, we will execute a Contract with the Town of Simsbury, Owner of the properties.

In submitting this BID, the BIDDER acknowledges that:

- 1. Each lump sum price includes all labor, materials, transportation, hauling, overhead, fees and insurances, profit, and all other costs to cover the finished work called for regarding the specified section of Town as stated in the Contract Documents. No additional payment of any kind in the form of a surcharge will be made for work accomplished under the lump sum prices, as bid.
- 2. No representation of warranty has been made by the OWNER that the estimated quantities used for comparison of BIDS will even approximate the actual quantities required to satisfactorily complete the WORK required under this CONTRACT.
- 3. Upon receipt of written notice of acceptance of this BID by the OWNER, the BIDDER shall execute the CONTRACT attached to these documents within ten (10) calendar days and other documents as required in these documents.
- 4. In regard to all conditions affecting the WORK to be done and the labor and materials to be furnished, this BID is based solely on the BIDDER'S investigations and findings and neither the OWNER nor its officers, employees or agents shall be held responsible for the accuracy of, or be bound by any information contained in these Contract Documents.

Submitted By: _				
· –	Company		Phone	
	Street	City	Zip	
Product to be us	ed as a Sealant:			
Anticipated Deli	very Date:			
Assuming Aug. 24, 2	017 notice to proceed			
Authorized Sign	ature:			
	Sig	inature	Printed Name	

#### IF A SOLELY OWNED COMPANY:

Company Name	
Address	
Town	
By	
	(Authorized Signature)
Title	Date
IF A CORPORATION OR LIMITE	ED LIABILITY COMPANY:
A corporation or limited liability co	mpany organized under the laws of
, compose	ed of officers as follows:
-	
President	Secretary
Vice President	Treasurer
IF A PARTNERSHIP:	
A partnership doing business under	the firm name and style of
	·
	_, composed of partners as follows:
Name & Title (if any)	Name & Title (if any)
Name & Title (if any)	Name & Title (if any)

This Bill must bear the written signature of the BIDDER. If the BIDDER is a partnership, the Bid must be signed by a partner. If the BIDDER is a corporation or limited liability company, the Bid must be signed by a duly authorized officer of such corporation or Limited Liability Company.

#### **BIDDER'S QUALIFICATIONS STATEMENT**

The BIDDER shall answer all of the following questions, as part of the Bid, so that the OWNER can judge the BIDDER's ability, experience and facilities for performing the proposed work.

1.	Name of BIDDER:
2.	Bidder's Tax Identification Number:
3.	What year was company organized/formed?
4.	How many years has the BIDDER been engaged in business under the present firm or trade name?
5.	What is the general character or type of work you perform?
6.	Has a claim ever been brought in court or to arbitration against the BIDDER for failure to complete any contracted work or default on a contract?
	If yes, explain with whom and why:
7.	For other similar projects you have under contract at the present time: Attach list with description of work; the name of the client/owner with telephone number; and the approximate value of the work to be performed.
	<u>NOTE:</u> The BIDDER is required to have <u>completed a minimum</u> of five (5) similar projects as a demonstration of competency and experience for the project proposed herein. Such projects are to be listed below.
8.	Attach a list of <u>all projects</u> that your present organization has completed within the past ten years or is presently working on, including name of project, owner and name and telephone number of the owner's representative. Indicate here how many additional pages attached: pages.
9.	Attach a list of the names, addresses and the background/experience of all principal or key members of the BIDDERS organization, including its officers:
	Indicate the number of pages attached:pages
<u>N(</u>	<u>OTE</u> : If requested, the BIDDER agrees to furnish the OWNER with a detailed financial statement

and other relevant information that may be required by the Town of Simsbury to properly evaluate

the qualifications of the BIDDER.

#### PROPOSED SUBCONTRACTORS

BIDDER intends to utilize	ze the following subcontrac	tors on this project:
If none, write "None" he	ere:	
NAME AND ADDRESS OF SUBCONTRACTOR		DESCRIPTION OF WORK:
1.		
2.		
3.		
4.		
5.		
6		

#### NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT OF BIDDER

Sta	te of, County of, being first
du	te of, County of, being first y sworn, disposes and says that:
1.	He is the owner, officer, representative or agent of:the BIDDER that has submitted the attached BID;
2.	The attached BID is genuine; it is not a collusive or sham BID.
3.	He is fully informed respecting the preparation, and contents of, and knowledgeable of all pertinent circumstances respecting the attached BID.
4.	Neither BIDDER nor any of its officers, partners, owners, agents, representatives, employees, or parties in interest, including this affiant, has in any way colluded, conspired, connived, or agreed, directly or indirectly, with any other bidder, firm or person to submit a collusive or sham BID in connection with the AGREEMENT for which the attached BID has been submitted or to refrain from bidding in connection with any contract, or has in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement, collusion, communication or conference with any other bidder, firm or person to fix the price or prices in the attached BID or of any other bidder, or to fix any overhead, profit or cost element of the BID prices or the bid price of any other bidder, or to secure through collusion, conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement any advantage against the Town of Simsbury or any other person interested in the proposed AGREEMENT.
5.	The price(s) quoted in the attached BID are fair and proper and are not tainted by any collusion, conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement on the part of the BIDDER or any of its agents, representatives, owners, employees, or parties in interest, including this affiant; and
6.	That no elected or appointed official or other officer or employee of the Town of Simsbury, who is directly or indirectly interested in this BID, or in the supplies, materials, equipment, work or labor to which it relates, or in any of the profits thereof.
	(Signed)
	(Name of Bidder)
Su	oscribed and sworn to before me thisday of, 2017
	Title Commission expires, 20

### RANDOM CRACK SEALING FOR BITUMINOUS PAVEMENTS GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS FOR HOT CRACK SEAL

#### A. Scope of Work

The work covered by this section of these specifications consists of furnishing all plant, labor, equipment and material necessary to perform all operations in connection with reshaping, cleaning, and sealing of random cracks in bituminous concrete pavements, and vegetation removal and sterilization of cracks where necessary.

#### B. Materials

- 1. Sealant must be Crafto or Koke or an approved equal and exceed federal standard ASTM D3405.
- 2. 3060 granulated "black beauty" slag.
- 3. Ground reclaimed rubber (filler material) or approved equal.
- 4. Provide MSDS sheets on all materials.

#### C. Equipment

Equipment used in the performance of the work required by this section of the specifications shall be subject to the approval of the director of public works and maintained in a satisfactory working condition at all times.

- 1. Manually operated gas powered air broom or self-propelled sweeper, designed especially for cleaning highways and/or air field pavements, shall be used to remove debris, dirt and dust from the road surface.
- 2. Hand tools shall consist of brooms, shovels, metal bars with chisels and any other tool which may be used or needed to satisfactorily complete this work.
- 3. Melting kettle: the unit used to melt joint sealing compound shall be a double boiler, indirect fired type. The space between the inner and outer shell shall be filled with suitable heat transfer oil or substitute with a flash point of not less than 600 degrees Fahrenheit. The kettle shall be equipped with means of continuous agitation to maintain a homogenous joint sealant blend. This shall be accomplished by the use of an auger agitator. The agitator shall be permanently equipped with thermostatic controls and temperature gauges on both sealant and transfer medium. Kettle shall be capable of pressure applying and recirculating sealant in order to maintain constant pouring temperature.
- 4. Equipment used for blowing clean and drying air for the rejuvenation of sidewalls of cracks and joint shall be a compressed air blow dryer.

#### D. Preparation

- 1. All cracks 1/8" and wider shall be sealed.
- 2. Cracks shall be thoroughly cleaned. No crack sealing material shall be applied in wet cracks or where frost, snow or ice is present or when ambient temperature is below 40 degrees Fahrenheit.
- 3. Debris removal: all old material and debris removed from cracks shall be cleaned from the pavement surface.
- 4. Vegetation: when cracks show evidence of vegetation, it shall be removed, eliminating all dirt and moisture. All cracks of sufficient depth and over 3/4" in width shall, when necessary, be filled with ground reclaimed rubber to within 5/8" of the top of pavement.
- 5. Dry granulated "black beauty" slag or approved equal shall be dusted over cracks to eliminate pick-up.

#### **E.** Preparation of Sealant

Joint sealant material shall be heated and applied at temperatures specified by the manufacturer.

#### F. Installation of Sealant

All cracks shall be sealed as specified herein, and the sealant shall be bonded to the pavement. Sealant shall be applied by a banding type pour pot leaving a thin overseal approximately 3" wide.

#### G. Workmanship

All workmanship shall be of the highest quality. All excess and spilled sealer shall be removed from the pavement by approved methods and discarded. Do not over-band or fill excessively. No over-banding shall be allowed on areas where cars park. Any workmanship determined by the director of public works to be below standards shall be corrected and/or replaced by the contractor.

#### H. Scheduling Work

The contractor shall assume that all work will be done Monday through Friday between the hours of 7:00 am and 4:00 pm. No work shall be performed on state or federal holidays.

#### I. Traffic Control

The contractor shall be responsible for supplying traffic control. Maintenance of traffic shall consist of providing and maintaining construction signs, barricades, delineators, flag people, lights, or any other warning device as needed or ordered by the chief of police. A traffic control plan shall be submitted for approval before beginning the work. The contractor is responsible for the safety of all operations within the roadway.

#### J. Measurement and Payment

All work will be paid as a Lump Sum for work complete and in place according to the contract documents on a street by street basis. No payments will be made for mobilization, materials or other costs. The Town reserves the right to hold a 5% retainage on all progress payments.

#### RANDOM CRACK SEALING AGREEMENT

This Random Cr	rack Sealing for I	Bituminous Paver	ments Agreement (the	"Agreement") is
entered into the	_day of	, 2017 (" <u>Eff</u>	fective Date") by and l	between the Town of
Simsbury, a political	subdivision of th	e State of Connec	cticut (the "Town") an	.d,
a	locat	ed at_,		
	(the "	Contractor").		
-	ments for the Tov	wn of Simsbury (t		andom Crack Sealing
WHEREAS, Co accordance with the r				, for the Work in
WHEREAS, the into a formal Agreem				ontractor desire to enter
THEREFORE, i parties below, the par			forth above and the m	utual promises by the
1. <u>General.</u> The Co	ontractor agrees	to perform the Wo	ork in accordance with	n this Agreement,

- 1. <u>General.</u> The Contractor agrees to perform the Work in accordance with this Agreement, Standard Instructions to Bidders and the General Specifications (collectively the "Contract Documents). The Contract Documents represent the entire and integrated agreement between the Town and the Contractor and supersede all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, whether written or oral.
- 2. <u>Duties.</u> Contractor shall perform the Work described in the Contract Documents except for any work that is specifically prescribed in the Contract Documents to be the responsibility of another vendor or the Town. Contractor shall furnish all labor, equipment, trucks, materials, facilities, supplies, transport, and any other things necessary to carry out the terms of the Agreement Documents.
- 3. Permits and Standards. Contractor shall, at its own expense, obtain all required permits and agreements from the Town, federal, state or other governmental authority for performance of the Work in accordance with the standards prescribed by the federal Environmental Protection Agency, the Occupational Safety and Health Administration, NIOSH, the Department of Energy & Environmental Protection of the State of Connecticut and any other federal, state or local government laws and regulations. In the event of a conflict or overlap of any such laws or regulations, the most stringent provisions shall be applicable.
- 4. <u>Compliance with Laws.</u> Contractor shall comply with all federal, state and local laws and regulations governing the Work whether or not such laws and regulations are fully and properly reflected in the ITB.

5.	Term. Th	e term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date of t	his Agreement			
and	be in effec	t until completion, which shall be not later than (date)	The contractor			
shall	shall not start the Work prior to having received a notification to proceed from the Town.					
6.	Payment.	The Town will pay the Contractor the sum of				
Doll	ars (\$	) upon the completion by the Contractor of all Work required	to be performed			
unde	er the terms	s of the Contract Documents and acceptance of the Work by the Tow	vn.			

- 7. <u>Insurance.</u> The Contractor shall carry and keep in force during the term of this Agreement insurance as more specifically described in Section 10 of the Standard Instructions to Bidders, by a company or companies authorized to do business in Connecticut. The Company shall provide certificates of insurance specifying such coverage and naming the Town as additional insured prior to the start of the work and shall provide a complete copy of the Owners, Contractors Protective Liability policy.
- 8. <u>Liability.</u> The Contractor agrees to assume full responsibility and liability for damage or injury to persons or real or tangible personal property caused directly or indirectly by the negligent or tortuous actions or inactions of the Contractor, its agents, employees or subcontractors with respect to the Work. The Contractor further agrees to assume full responsibility and liability for the Contractor's failure to comply with any applicable federal, state or local law or regulation in the performance of Contractor's duties pursuant to the Contract Documents.
- 9. <u>Hold Harmless.</u> The Contractor agrees to indemnify and save harmless the Town of Simsbury, its agents and employees, from and against all loss or expense, (including costs and attorneys' fees), arising out of or resulting from the performance of the Work by the Contractor by reason or liability imposed upon the Town of Simsbury, its agents and employees, for damages because of bodily injury, including death at any time resulting there from, sustained by any person or persons, (including employees of the Contractor), or on account of damage to property, including loss of use thereof, if such injuries or damages are caused by the negligence or breach of Agreement documents of the Contractor, its' agents and employees or otherwise. The existence of insurance shall in no way limit the scope of this indemnification. The indemnification provision shall be separate and distinct from issuance of a Certificate of Insurance.
- 10. <u>Assignment</u>. This Assignment shall be binding upon each of the Parties, their successors, executors, administrators and assigns. The Contractor shall not assign, sublet, contract, or otherwise transfer its interest, in whole or in part, in this Agreement without the express written consent of the Town. None of the work or services covered by this Agreement shall be subcontracted without the prior written approval of Town.
- 11. <u>Termination.</u> If the Contractor fails to perform the work under the Contract Documents in accordance with its terms, the Town shall have the right, in addition to all other remedies it may have, to declare the Agreement in default and, therefore, terminated and to resubmit the Agreement for further bid. In that event, the Contractor shall pay the Town, as liquidated damages, the amount of any excess of the new Agreement Price over the Agreement Price herein provided for, both prorated to the period of time covered by the unexpired term of the Agreement at the time of default, plus any legal or other costs incurred by the Town in terminating the Agreement and securing a new contractor.

- 12. Contract Documents. The Contract Documents include, without limitation, the following:
  - (i) This Agreement; and
- (ii) The ITB, including the Standard Instructions to Bidders, General Specifications and Insurance Coverage and;
- (iii) Any addenda issued prior to the execution of this Agreement or modifications issued after the execution of this Agreement;
- 13. <u>Change Orders, Price Modifications, and Other Amendments.</u> The Town shall have the right to require the Contractor to make alterations of, additions to and deductions from the Scope of Work. All such changes to the Scope of Work shall be made by a written change order written by the Town. The Contractor shall compute the cost of the work under change order upon the Agreement price, subject to review and acceptance by the Town. Any other changes or amendments to the terms of this Agreement and the other Contract Documents may be made only by a written document referencing this Agreement and executed by both parties.
- 14. <u>Governing Law/Venue</u>: The laws of the State of Connecticut shall govern the formation, interpretation, and performance of this Agreement. No lawsuit pertaining to any matter under or growing out of this Agreement shall be instituted in any state other than Connecticut. The Parties agree that the venue for any legal proceeding in respect to this Agreement shall be Connecticut Superior Court, Judicial District of Hartford at Hartford. Venue for mediation shall be Hartford County.
- 15. <u>Independent Contractor</u>: Contractor's personnel shall be and remain an independent consultant with respect to all services performed hereunder and agrees to and does hereby accept full and exclusive liability for payment of any and all contributions or taxes for social security, unemployment insurances, or old age retirement benefits, pensions, or annuities now or hereafter imposed under any local, state or federal law which are measured by the wages, salaries, or other remuneration paid to persons employed by Contractor for work performed under the terms of this Agreement. Contractor further agrees to obey all lawful rules and regulations and to meet all lawful requirements which are now or hereafter may be issued or promulgated under said respective laws by and duly authorized by state or federal officials. Contractor also agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Simsbury from contributions or taxes or liability.
- 16. <u>Payment of Subconsultants</u>: Contractor shall well, truly and promptly pay or satisfy the just and equitable claims of all persons who have performed labor or furnished materials or equipment for Contractor in the execution of this Agreement, and all bills, costs or claims of whatever kind which might in law or equity become a lien upon said work.
- 17. <u>Amendment</u>: Any changes to the terms and conditions as outlined herein must be mutually agreed upon by and between the Parties shall be incorporated in written amendments hereto, executed with the same formalities as this Agreement. No amendment or modification of this Agreement shall be effective until executed by the Parties.

which shall be considered an original instruand the same agreement, and shall become	executed in one or more counterparts, each of ament, but all of which shall be considered one binding when one or more counterparts have and delivered (including delivery by facsimile)
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have	e executed this Agreement as of the day
and year first written above.	e executed this Agreement as of the day
TOWN OF SIMSBURY	CONTRACTOR
Its Duly Authorized	BY_Its Duly Authorized

### Town of Simsbury RANDOM CRACK SEALING FOR BITUMINOUS PAVEMENTS

#### **SUPPLEMENTAL CONTRACT SECTION**

#### **CODE OF ETHICS**

Chapter 13 of the Code of Ordinances, the Simsbury Code of Ethics, is hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set forth, and is made a part of the Contract Documents. All Contractors shall sign the Acknowledgement Form.

## STATEMENT OF BIDDERS COMPLIANCE WITH EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY LAW AND REGULATION INCLUDING EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 3

This statement must be completed by the Bidder and shall accompany his bid for this project.

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED	THAT:
NAME OF BIDDER:	
BUSINESS ADDRESS:	
<u> </u>	the Bidder has complied on past Contracts and will fully comply on e laws and regulation regarding equal employment opportunities for
Has has not Executive Order No. 3 of the regards to Non-Discrimination	previously performed work under the conditions of the Governor's tate of Connecticut, or any preceding similar Executive Order with .
Signature	
Title	
Subscribed and sworn to beforeday of	
Title	
My Commission expires	, 20

**IMPORTANT**: THIS STATEMENT MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH BID

**END OF SECTION** 

#### TOWN OF SIMSBURY

## Acknowledgement Form and Charter Section 1103 Code of the Town of Simsbury

#### ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM

I have read Section 1103 of the Charter of the Town of Simsbury, the Code of Ethics Ordinance, and the Guidelines issued thereunder. I understand my responsibilities as a Contractor retained by the Town of Simsbury, and I am in compliance with the Charter and the Code of Ethics. I have indicated in the space below any areas of conflict should they arise in matters before our board, commission, agency or department, and I agree to report any future conflicts under the provisions of Section 1103 of the Charter.

Areas of Exception

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST SECTION 1103				
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. It is hereby declared to be the policy of the Town that any elected or appointed officer, any member of any board or commission or any employee of the Town who has a financial interest, direct or indirect, in any contract, transaction or decision of any officer or agent of the Town or any board or commission, shall disclose that interest to the Board of Selectmen, which shall record such disclosure upon the official record of its meetings. Such disclosure of a financial interest, direct or indirect, in any contract, transaction or decision of any officer or agent of the town or of any board or commission shall disqualify such elected or appointed official or such member of a board of commission or such town employee from participation in the awarding, assignment or discussion of said contract, transaction or decision. Violation by any such official, board or commission member or employee of the provisions of this section shall be grounds for his/her removal.				
Signature				
Name (Please Print)				
Date				

#### CONTRACTOR'S EXEMPT PURCHASE CERTIFICATE

I hereby certify, under penalties of perjury, that I am engaged in the performance of a construction contract on a project for the following named exempt agency or organization:

Town of Simsbury		
Full Name of Agency of Organization		
	PO BOX 49 933 Hopmeadow Simsbury, CT.	Street
	Address of Sa	me
That such agency is, Use Tax because it i	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	nd belief, exempt from the Sales and
	Town	
(T	own, School, Fire or Police Dep or other branch of State or Fed	
in accordance with I	Regulation No. 16 of Sales and U	Jse Tax.
	is issued to cover all purchases of project referred to above.	of materials and supplies, designated
Permit No.	(if any) (signed)	Contractor
Date:		
Place:		
		Firm Name
Address:		

#### **GENERAL CONDITIONS**

#### 1. **DEFINITIONS**

- 1.1 Wherever used in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, The following terms shall have the meanings indicated which shall be applicable to both the singular and plural thereof.
- 1.2 ADDENDA Written or Graphic Instruments issued prior to the execution of the Agreement which modify or interpret the Contract Documents, Drawings and Specifications, by additions, deletions, clarifications or corrections.
- 1.3 BID The offer or proposal of the BIDDER submitted on the prescribed form setting forth the prices for the WORK to be performed.
- 1.4 BIDDER -Any person, firm, or corporation submitting a BID for the WORK.
- 1.5 BONDS Bid, Performance, and Payment Bonds and other instruments of security, furnished by the CONTRACTOR in accordance with the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.
- 1.6 CHANGE ORDER A written order to the CONTRACTOR authorizing an addition, deletion, or revision in the WORK within the general scope of the CONTRACT TIME.
- 1.7 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS The contract including Advertisement for Bids, information for Bidders, BID, Bid Bond, Agreement, Payment Bond, Performance Bond, NOTICE OF AWARD, NOTICE TO PROCEED, CHANGE ORDER, DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND ADDENDA.
- 1.8 CONTRACT PRICE The total monies payable to the CONTRACTOR under the terms and conditions of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.
- 1.9 CONTRACT TIME The number of calendar days stated in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS for the completion of the WORK.
- 1.10 CONTRACTOR The person, firm, or corporation with whom the OWNER has executed the Agreement.
- 1.11 DRAWINGS The part of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS which show the characteristics and scope of the WORK to be performed and which have been prepared or approved by the ENGINEER.
- 1.12 ENGINEER The Director of Public Works for the Town of Simsbury, Connecticut.

- 1.13 FIELD ORDER A written order affecting a change in the WORK not involving an adjustment in the CONTRACT PRICE or an extension of the CONTRACT TIME, issued by the ENGINEER to the CONTRACTOR during construction.
- 1.14 INSPECTOR The person appointed by the Town of Simsbury, Conn. to supervise the WORK and shall extend to and include any assistant whom he/she may designate to act in the premises.
- 1.15 NOTICE OF AWARD The written notice of the acceptance of the Bid from the OWNER to the successful BIDDER.
- 1.16 NOTICE TO PROCEED Written communication issued by the OWNER to the CONTRACTOR authorizing him/her to proceed with the WORK and establishing the date of commencement of the work.
- 1.17 OWNER The Town of Simsbury, Connecticut (A Public Body) for whom the WORK is to be performed.
- 1.18 PROJECT The undertaking to be performed as provided in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.
- 1.19 SHOP DRAWINGS All Drawings, Diagrams, Illustrations, Brochures, Schedules, and other data which are prepared by the CONTRACTOR, A SUBCONTRACTOR, manufacturer SUPPLIER or Distributor which illustrate how specific portions of the WORK shall be fabricated or installed.
- 1.20 SPECIFICATIONS A part of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS consisting of written descriptions of a technical nature of materials, equipment, construction systems, standards and workmanship.
- 1.21 SUBCONTRACTOR An individual firm or corporation having a direct contract with the CONTRACTOR or with any other SUBCONTRACTOR for the performance of a part of the work at the site.
- 1.22 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION- That date as certified by the ENGINEER when the construction of the PROJECT or a specified part thereof is sufficiently completed, in accordance with the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, so that the PROJECT or specified part can be utilized for the purposes for which it is intended.
- 1.23 SUPPLEMENTAL GENERAL CONDITIONS Special provisions required by the funding program or Agency (Federal, State, or

Local) for participation in the PROJECT and included in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. Also such requirements that may be imposed by Applicable State Laws and special characteristics of the PROJECT.

- 1.24 SUPPLIER Any person or organization who supplies materials or equipment for the WORK, including that fabricated to a special design, but who does not perform labor at the site.
- 1.25 WORK All labor necessary to produce the construction required by the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, all construction tools, machinery, and equipment, and all materials and equipment incorporated or to be incorporated in the PROJECT.
- 1.26 WRITTEN NOTICE Any notice to any party of the Agreement relative to any part of this Agreement in writing and considered delivered and the service thereof completed, when posted by Mail to the said party at his/her last given address or delivered in person to said party or his/her authorized representative on the WORK.

#### 2. PAYMENT

2.1 On the first of each month, the Contractor may submit an itemized estimate of work completed up to that time, including an estimate of the portion of lump sum items completed.

He/she must, if requested by the Engineer, submit satisfactory evidence that he/she has paid in full for all labor, materials and equipment included in the monthly estimate. The estimates shall be made on forms furnished by the Town and the Contractor shall certify that the estimate is correct and the work performed is in conformity with the plans and specifications. No later than 31 days after submission by the Contractor, and acceptance by the Town, of the estimate, the Town will pay the estimated cost, less five percent (5%) retained by the Town.

After completion of the project and acceptance by the Town, the Contractor shall submit an itemized final estimate. No later than 31days after acceptance of the final estimate by the Town, the Town shall pay ninety-five (95%) percent of the Contract price. No later than six months after acceptance of the final estimate the Town will pay the five (5%) retained, unless in that time the materials or workmanship in the project shall have been found to be defective.

#### 3. PERMITS DURATION

- 3.1 The Contractor must obtain all necessary permits and pay the fee for them. (Town portion of permit fees are waived. The State of Connecticut portion of building permits will not be waived.)
- 3.2 Should the Town be prevented or enjoined from proceeding with work either before or after the start of construction by reason of any litigation or other reason beyond the control of the Town, the Contractor shall not be entitled to or assert claim for damage by reason of said delay; but time for completion of the work will be extended to such reasonable time as the Owner may determine will compensate for time lost by such delay with such determination to be set forth in writing.

#### 4. SUPERVISION

- 4.1 The Town will be represented at all times by the TOWN DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS or an employee authorized by the TOWN DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS to represent him/her; and the DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS or his/her authorized representative shall have sole authority in the interpretation and execution of the contract.
- 4.2 The Contractor must have a competent Field Supervisor on the job during all working hours and notify the Town of his/her name and address in writing, and where he/she may be reached normally after working hours. In the event of the absence of the Field Supervisor, the Contractor must appoint a second in command to take responsible charge of the job. The actual performance of work and superintendence shall be performed by the Contractor but the owner shall, at all times, have access to the premises for the purpose of observing or inspecting the work performed by the Contractor.

#### 5. LAYOUT

5.1 The Town will provide line and grade by means of offset points. However, the Contractor will protect these offset points and may be charged for replacing of same. Any additional field work required to reestablish these offset points to facilitate construction will be paid for by the Contractor.

#### 6. SITE WORK

- 6.1 The Contractor will be responsible for maintenance of adequate barricades, signs, and warning systems to protect the job and the public.
- 6.2 The Contractor shall properly protect all underground and above ground utilities from damage. No interruption shall be caused to any utility without the knowledge of the TOWN DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS.

#### 7. STANDARDS

7.1 Whenever a material, article, or piece of equipment is identified on the plans or in the specifications by reference to manufacturers' or vendors' names, trade names, catalogue numbers, etc., it is intended merely to establish a standard and, any material, article, or equipment of other manufacturers and vendors which will perform adequately the duties imposed by the general design will be considered equally acceptable provided the material, article, or equipment so proposed, is, in the opinion of the Town Engineer, of equal substance and function. It shall not be purchased or installed by the Contractor without written approval.

#### 8. CHANGES IN WORK

8.1 The Owner, without invalidating the Contract, may order extra work or make changes by altering, adding to or deducting from the work, the Contract Sum being adjusted accordingly.

#### 9. CORRECTION OF WORK AFTER FINAL PAYMENT

- 9.1 Neither the final Certificate nor payment nor any provision in the Contract Documents shall relieve the contractor of responsibility for faulty materials or workmanship and, unless otherwise specified, he shall remedy any defects due thereto and pay for any damage to other work resulting therefrom, which shall appear within a period of one year from the date of substantial completion.
- 9.2 The Owner shall give notice of observed defects with reasonable promptness. All questions arising under this article shall be decided by the DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS subject to mediation.

#### **10. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS**

The Contractor must carry insurance under which the Town is named as an assured, as follows:

Such insurance must be by insurance companies licensed to write such insurance in Connecticut against the following risks with the following minimum amounts and minimum durations.

- Workman's Compensation, as required by State Statute. Α.
- Public Liability, Bodily Injury Liability and Property Damage Liability as follows: B.

Injury or death of one person:	\$2,000,000
Injury to more than one person in	
a single accident:	\$1,000,000
Property damage in one accident:	\$1,000,000
Property damage in all accidents:	\$1,000,000

C. Automobile and Truck (Vehicular) Public Liability, Bodily Injury Liability, and Property Damage Liability as follows:

Property damage in all accidents:

Injury or death of one person:	\$1,000,000
Injury to more than one person in	
a single accident:	\$1,000,000
Property damage in one accident:	\$1,000,000

Builders Risk including Fire and Extended coverage: D. In an amount equal to the value of construction completed plus materials delivered to the site.

Insurance under B, C, and D above must provide for a 30 day notice to the Town of cancellation/or restrictive amendment.

Insurance under B and C above must be for the whole duration of the contract and for twelve (12) months after acceptance of the project by the Town.

Insurance under D above must be carried for the whole duration of the project and until acceptance by the Town.

Subcontractors must carry A, B and C in the same amounts as above for the duration of the project and until acceptance by the Town.

\$1,000,000

Certificates of insurance must be submitted to the Director of Public Works prior to the signing of the contract and within ten days of notification of award of contract. Should any insurance expire or be terminated during the period in which the same is required by this contract, the Director of Public Works shall be notified and such expired or terminated insurance must be replaced with new insurance and a new certificate furnished to the Director of Public Works.

Failure to provide the required insurance and certificates may, at the option of the Town, be held to be a willful and substantial breach of this contract.

NOTE: Coverage under "B" shall include XCU coverage as necessary,
Collapse and Underground shall be provided for <u>ALL</u> Contracts.
Explosion will be provided if specified, or prior to any blasting being performed under the Contract.

#### 11. OWNER'S RIGHT TO DO WORK

If the Contractor fails to prosecute the work properly or fails to perform any provisions of this contract, the Owner, after three days written notice to the Contractor may, without prejudice to any other remedy it may have, make good such deficiencies and may deduct the cost thereof from the payment then or thereafter due the Contractor. Provided, however, that the Public Works Director shall approve both such action and the amount charged to the Contractor.

#### 12. ACCEPTANCE OF FINAL PAYMENT AS RELEASE

The acceptance by the Contractor of final payment shall be and shall operate as a release to the OWNER of all claims and all liability to the CONTRACTOR other than claims in stated amounts as may be specifically excepted by the CONTRACTOR for all things done or furnished in connection with this WORK and for every act and neglect of the OWNER and others relating to or arising out of this WORK. Any payment however, final or otherwise, shall not release the CONTRACTOR or his sureties from any obligations under the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS or the Performance BOND and Payment BONDS.

#### 13. CONTRACT SECURITY

The Contractor shall within ten (10) days after the receipt of the NOTICE OF AWARD furnish the OWNER with a performance BOND and a payment BOND in penal sums equal to the amount of the CONTRACT PRICE, conditioned upon the performance by the CONTRACTOR of all

undertakings, covenants, terms, conditions, and agreements of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, and upon the prompt payment by the CONTRACTOR to all persons supplying labor and materials in the prosecution of the WORK provided by the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. Such BONDS shall be executed by the CONTRACTOR and shall be in a Form acceptable to the Town Director of Finance. When Surety Company Bonds are used, the corporate bonding company shall be licensed to transact such business in the State of Connecticut and named on the current list of "Surety Companies Acceptable on Federal Bonds" as published in the Treasury Department Circular Number 570. The expense of these BONDS shall be borne by the CONTRACTOR. If at any time a surety on any such bond is declared as bankrupt or loses its right to do business in the State in which the WORK is to be performed or is removed from the list of surety companies accepted on FEDERAL BONDS, CONTRACTOR shall within ten (10) days after notice from the OWNER to do so, substitute an acceptable BOND (or BONDS) in such form and sum as may be satisfactory to the OWNER. The premiums on such BOND shall be paid by the CONTRACTOR. No further payments shall be deemed due nor shall be made until the CONTRACTOR shall have furnished an acceptable BOND to the OWNER.

#### 14. ASSIGNMENT

Neither the CONTRACTOR nor the OWNER shall sell, transfer, assign, or otherwise dispose of the CONTRACT or any portion thereof, or of his/her right title or interest therein, or his obligations there under, without written consent of the other party.

#### 15. DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS

- 15.1 The intent of the DRAWINGS and SPECIFICATIONS is that the CONTRACTOR shall furnish all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and transportation necessary for the proper execution of the WORK in accordance with the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS and all incidental work necessary to complete the PROJECT in an acceptable manner ready for use, occupancy, or operation by the OWNER.
- In case of conflict between the DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS, the SPECIFICATIONS shall govern. Figure dimensions on DRAWINGS shall govern over scale dimensions, and detailed DRAWINGS shall govern over general DRAWINGS.

- 15.3 Any discrepancies found between the DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS and site conditions or any inconsistencies or ambiguities in the DRAWINGS or SPECIFICATIONS shall be immediately reported to the ENGINEER, in writing, who shall promptly correct such inconsistencies or ambiguities in writing. WORK done by the CONTRACTOR after his/her discovery of such discrepancies, inconsistencies or ambiguities shall be done at the CONTRACTOR'S risk.
- 15.4 The OWNER will furnish free of charge to the contractor up to three (3) copies of the DRAWINGS and SPECIFICATIONS as necessary for the proper execution of the WORK.

#### 16. MATERIALS, WORKMANSHIP, SERVICES, AND FACILITIES

- 16.1 It is understood that except as otherwise specifically stated in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, the CONTRACTOR shall provide and pay for all materials, tools, equipment, sanitary conveniences, light, power, transportation, supervision, temporary construction of any nature, and all other services and facilities of any nature whatsoever necessary to execute, complete, and deliver the WORK within the specified time.
- 16.2 All materials furnished shall be new and of the best quality customarily used in or furnished for work of the character of that herein proposed. Many features of the proposed work are described in detail herein, but the failure to so describe any part of the proposed work or any details or appurtenance thereof shall not be an exception to the above rule. The absence of requirements in drawings or specifications covering details usually included in first class installations of this kind shall not excuse the contractor for their omission in this work.
- 16.3 All workmanship shall be of the best quality for WORK of the character of that herein proposed. The CONTRACTOR shall employ only competent employees to do the WORK required.
- 16.4 Materials and equipment shall be so stored as to insure the preservation of their quality and fitness for the WORK. Stored materials and equipment to be incorporated in the WORK shall be located so as to facilitate prompt inspection.
- 16.5 Materials, supplies, or equipment to be incorporated into the WORK shall not be purchased by the CONTRACTOR or the SUBCONTRACTOR subject to a chattel mortgage or under a

- conditional sale contract or other agreement by which an interest is retained by the seller.
- 16.6 Drinking water furnished for the employees on the job shall comply with O.S.H.A. regulations.

## 17. PROTECTION OF WORK AND PROPERTY

- 17.1 The CONTRACTOR will be responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions and programs in connection with the WORK--he/she will take all necessary precautions for the safety of, and will provide the necessary protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to all employees on the site and other persons who may be affected thereby, all the work and all materials or equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the site, and other property at the site or adjacent thereto, including trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, structures, and utilities not designated for removal, relocation, or replacement in the course of construction.
- 17.2 The CONTRACTOR will comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, and orders of any public body having jurisdiction. He/she will erect and maintain, as required by the conditions and progress of the WORK, all necessary safeguards for safety and protection. He/she will notify owners of adjacent utilities when prosecution of the work may affect them. The CONTRACTOR will remedy all damage, injury, or loss to any property caused, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, by the CONTRACTOR, and SUBCONTRACTOR or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them be liable, except damage or loss attributable to the fault of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS or the acts or omissions, of the OWNER or the ENGINEER or anyone employed by either of them or anyone for whose acts either of them may be liable, and not attributable, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, to the fault or negligence of the CONTRACTOR.
- 17.3 The CONTRACTOR will notify the OWNER at least one week prior to the start of construction.
- 17.4 The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for verifying the location of any existing utilities. The CONTRACTOR shall notify "Call Before You Dig" at 1-800-922-4455 such that any utility lines can be marked.

17.5 In emergencies affecting the safety of persons or the work or property at the site or adjacent thereto, the CONTRACTOR, without special instruction or authorization from the ENGINEER or OWNER, shall act to prevent threatened damage, injury or loss. He/she will give the ENGINEER prompt WRITTEN NOTICE of any significant changes in the WORK or deviations from the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS caused thereby, and a CHANGE ORDER shall thereupon be issued covering the changes and deviations involved.

### 18. CHANGES IN CONTRACT PRICE

The CONTRACT PRICE may be changed only by a CHANGE ORDER. The value of any WORK covered by a CHANGE ORDER or of any claim for increase or decrease in the CONTRACT PRICE shall be determined by one or more of the following methods in the order of precedence listed below:

- (a) Unit prices previously approved
- (b) An agreed lump sum
- (c) The actual cost for labor, direct overhead, materials, supplies, equipment, and other services necessary to complete the work. In addition there shall be added an amount to be agreed upon but not to exceed fifteen (15) percent of the actual cost of the WORK to cover the cost of general overhead and profit.

#### 19. TIME FOR COMPLETION

- 19.1 The date of beginning and the time for completion of the WORK are essential conditions of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS and the WORK embraced shall be commenced on a date specified in the NOTICE TO PROCEED.
- 19.2 The CONTRACTOR will proceed with the work at such rate of progress to insure full completion within the CONTRACT TIME. It is expressly understood and agreed, by and between the CONTRACTOR and the OWNER, that the CONTRACT TIME for the completion of the WORK described herein is a reasonable time, taking into consideration the average climatic and economic conditions and other factors prevailing in the locality of the WORK.
- 19.3 If the CONTRACTOR is delayed at any time in the progress of the WORK by changes ordered in the WORK, by labor disputes, fire, unusual delay in transportation, unavoidable casualties, causes beyond the CONTRACTOR'S control, or by any cause which the ENGINEER may determine justifies the delay, then the CONTRACT TIME shall

be extended by CHANGE ORDER for such reasonable time as the ENGINEER may determine.

# 20. SUSPENSION OF WORK, TERMINATION AND DELAY

- 20.1 The OWNER may suspend the WORK or any portion thereof for a period of not more than ninety days, or such further time as agreed upon by the CONTRACTOR, by WRITTEN NOTICE to the CONTRACTOR and the ENGINEER which notice shall fix the date on which work shall be resumed. The CONTRACTOR will resume that WORK on the date so fixed. The CONTRACTOR will be allowed an increase in the CONTRACT PRICE or an extension of the CONTRACT TIME, or both, directly attributable to any suspension.
- 20.2 If the CONTRACTOR is adjudged as bankrupt or insolvent, or if he/she makes a general assignment for the benefit of his creditors, or if a trustee or receiver is appointed for the CONTRACTOR or for any of his property, or if he/she files a petition to take advantage of any debtor's act, or to reorganize under the bankruptcy or applicable laws, or if he/she repeatedly fails to supply sufficient skilled workmen or suitable materials or equipment, or if he/she repeatedly fails to make prompt payments to SUBCONTRACTORS or for labor, materials, or equipment or if he/she disregards laws, ordinances, rules, regulations or orders of any public body having jurisdiction of the WORK or if he/she disregards the authority of the ENGINEER, or if he/she otherwise violates any provision of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, then the OWNER may, without prejudice to any other right or remedy and after giving the CONTRACTOR and his/her surety a minimum of ten (10) days from delivery of a WRITTEN NOTICE, terminate the services of the CONTRACTOR and take possession of the PROJECT and of all materials, equipment. tools, construction equipment, and machinery thereon owned by the CONTRACTOR and finish the WORK by whatever method he/she may deem expedient. In such case the CONTRACTOR shall not be entitled to receive any further payment until the WORK is finished. If the unpaid balance of the CONTRACT PRICE exceeds the direct and indirect costs of completing the PROJECT, including compensation for additional professional services, such excess SHALL BE PAID TO THE CONTRACTOR. If such costs exceed such unpaid balance, the CONTRACTOR will pay the difference to the OWNER. Such costs incurred by the OWNER will be determined by the ENGINEER and incorporated in a CHANGE ORDER.

- 20.3 Where the CONTRACTOR'S services have been so terminated by the OWNER, said termination shall not affect any right of the OWNER against the CONTRACTOR then existing or which may thereafter accrue. Any retention or payment of monies by the OWNER due the CONTRACTOR will not release the CONTRACTOR from compliance with the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.
- 20.4 After ten (10) days from delivery of a WRITTEN NOTICE to the CONTRACTOR and the ENGINEER, the OWNER may, without cause and without prejudice to any other right or remedy, elect to abandon the PROJECT and terminate the contract. In such case, the CONTRACTOR shall be paid for all WORK executed and any expense sustained plus reasonable profit.
- If, through no act or fault of the CONTRACTOR, the WORK is 20.5 suspended for a period of more than ninety (90) days by the OWNER or under an order of court or other public authority, or the ENGINEER fails to act on any request for payment within thirty (30) days after it is submitted, or the OWNER fails to pay the CONTRACTOR substantially the sum approved by the ENGINEER or awarded by arbitrators within (30) days of its approval and presentation, then the Contractor may, after ten (10) days from delivery of a WRITTEN NOTICE to the OWNER and the ENGINEER, terminate the CONTRACT and recover from the OWNER payment for all WORK executed and all expenses sustained. In addition and in lieu of terminating the CONTRACT, if the ENGINEER has failed to act on a request for payment or if the OWNER has failed to make any payment as aforesaid, the CONTRACTOR may upon Ten (10) Days written notice to the OWNER and the ENGINEER stop the WORK until he has been paid all amounts then due, in which event and upon resumption of the WORK until he has been paid all amounts then due, in which event and upon resumption of the WORK, CHANGE ORDERS shall be issued for adjusting the CONTRACT PRICE or extending the CONTRACT TIME or both to compensate for the costs and delays attributable to the stoppage of the WORK.
- 20.6 If the performance of all or any portion of the WORK is suspended, delayed, or interrupted as a result of a failure of the OWNER or ENGINEER to act within the time specified in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, or if no time is specified, within a reasonable time, an adjustment in the CONTRACT PRICE or an extension of the CONTRACT TIME, or both shall be made by CHANGE ORDER to compensate the CONTRACTOR for the costs and delays necessarily caused by the failure of the OWNER or ENGINEER.

### 21. INDEMNIFICATION

- 21.1 The CONTRACTOR will indemnify and hold harmless the OWNER and their agents and employees from and against all Claims, Damage, Loss, or Expense including Attorney's fees arising out of or resulting from the performance of the WORK, provided that any such Claims, Damage, Loss or Expense is attributed to Bodily Injury, Sickness, Disease or Death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property including the loss of use resulting therefrom; and is caused in whole or in part by any negligent or willful act or omission of the CONTRACTOR, and SUBCONTRACTOR, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable.
- 21.2 In any and all claims against the OWNER or any of their agents or employees, by any employee of the CONTRACTOR or SUBCONTRACTOR, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, the INDEMNIFICATION OBLIGATION shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for the CONTRACTOR or any SUBCONTRACTOR under Workmen's Compensation Acts, Disability Benefit Acts or other Employee Benefits Acts.
- 21.3 The obligation of the CONTRACTOR under this paragraph shall not extend to the liability of the OWNER or any of its agents or employees arising out of the preparation or approval of MAPS, DRAWINGS, Opinions, Reports, Surveys, CHANGE ORDERS, Designs, or SPECIFICATIONS.

# 22. SEPARATE CONTRACTS

- 22.1 The OWNER reserves the right to let other contracts in connection with this PROJECT. The CONTRACTOR shall afford other CONTRACTORS reasonable opportunity for the introduction and storage of their materials and the execution of their WORK, and shall properly connect and coordinate his WORK with theirs. If the proper execution or results of any part of the CONTRACTOR's WORK depends upon the WORK of any other CONTRACTOR, the CONTRACTOR shall inspect and promptly report to the ENGINEER any defects in such WORK that render it unsuitable for such proper execution and results.
- 22.2 The OWNER may perform additional WORK related to the PROJECT by himself, or he may let other Contracts containing

provisions similar to these. The CONTRACTOR will afford the other CONTRACTORS who are Parties to such CONTRACTS (or the OWNER, if he is performing the additional WORK himself), reasonable opportunity for the introduction and storage of materials and equipment and the execution of WORK, and shall properly connect and coordinate his WORK with theirs.

22.3 If the performance of Additional WORK by other CONTRACTORS or the OWNER is not noted in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS prior to the execution of the CONTRACT, written notice thereof shall be given to the CONTRACTOR prior to starting any such additional WORK. If the CONTRACTOR believes that the performance of such additional WORK by the OWNER or others involves him in additional expense or entitles him to an extension of the CONTRACT TIME, he may make a Claim therefore as provided in Sections 22 and 23.

# 23. SUBCONTRACTING

- 23.1 The CONTRACTOR may utilize the services of Specialty SUBCONTRACTORS on those parts of the WORK which, under normal contracting practices, are performed by Specialty CONTRACTORS.
- 23.2 The CONTRACTOR shall not award WORK to SUBCONTRACTOR(s) in excess of Fifty (50) Percent of the CONTRACT PRICE, without prior written approval of the OWNER.
- 23.3 The CONTRACTOR shall be fully responsible to the OWNER for the Acts and omissions of his SUBCONTRACTORS, and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by him.
- 23.4 The CONTRACTOR shall cause appropriate provisions to be inserted in all subcontracts relative to the WORK to bind SUBCONTRACTORS, as applicable to the WORK OF SUBCONTRACTORS and to give the CONTRACTOR the same power as regards terminating any subcontract that the OWNER may exercise of the CONTRACTOR under any provision of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.
- 23.5 Nothing contained in this CONTRACT shall create any contractual relation between any SUBCONTRACTOR and the OWNER.

#### 24. GUARANTY

The CONTRACTOR shall guarantee all materials and equipment furnished and WORK performed for a period of one (1) year from the date of SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION. The CONTRACTOR warrants and guarantees for a period of one (1) year from the date of SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION of the PROJECT that the completed PROJECT is free from all defects due to faulty materials or WORKMANSHIP and the CONTRACTOR shall promptly make such corrections as may be necessary by reason of such defects including the repairs of any damage to other parts of the PROJECT resulting from such defects. The

OWNER will give notice of observed defects with reasonable promptness. In the event that the CONTRACTOR should fail to make such repairs, adjustments, or other WORK that may be made necessary by such defects, the OWNER may do so and charge the CONTRACTOR the cost thereby incurred. The PERFORMANCE BOND or a MAINTENANCE BOND shall remain in force at a value of 25% of the completed WORK through the GUARANTEE PERIOD.

#### 25. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

- 25.1 All claims, disputes and other matters in questions arising out of, or relating to, the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS or the breach thereof, except for claims which have been waived by the making and acceptance of Final Payment as provided by Section 16, shall be decided by Arbitration in accordance with the Construction Industry Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association. This agreement to arbitrate shall be specifically enforceable under the prevailing Connecticut Arbitration law.
- 25.2 Notice of the Demand for Arbitration shall be filed in writing with the Other Party to the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS and with the American Arbitration Association, and a copy shall be filed with the Engineer. The Demand for Arbitration shall in no event be made on any claim, dispute, or other matter in question which would be barred by the applicable Statute of Limitations.
- 25.3 The CONTRACTOR will carry on the WORK and maintain the Progress Schedule during any Mediation proceedings, unless otherwise mutually agreed in writing.

# **26. TAXES**

The CONTRACTOR will pay all consumer, use, and other similar taxes required by the Law of the Place where the WORK is performed. This WORK is being performed for a Municipal Government and is exempt from Sales Tax.

### SUPPLEMENTAL GENERAL CONDITIONS

- 1. PA 86-87, AAC Workers' Compensation Insurance Requirements for Contractors on Public Works projects and State licenses, prohibits municipalities from entering into a public works contract with an employer without receiving sufficient evidence from the employer that he has workers' compensation insurance and a statement from the state treasurer that the employer does not owe the Second Injury and Compensation Assurance Fund any money.
- 2. The Town of Simsbury Public Works Department shall be notified at least five (5) days prior to beginning work.
- 3. Prior to beginning work, the "Call Before You Dig" service shall be notified by the Contractor by calling 811 or 1-800-922-4455, or, if the contractor is registered, by e-ticket entry, such that any underground utilities in the immediate vicinity of the work can be marked.
- 4. All staking and surveying will be the responsibility of the Contractor.
- 5. All road monuments and lot pins shall be PRESERVED. Cost of resetting will be backcharged to the Contractor.
- 6. Sales and Use Tax Exempt Purchase Certificate/ The Contractor's attention is called to Regulation 18 as amended promulgated by the Sales and Use Tax Division of the State Tax Department, which provided for the Exemption of the sales and use tax on the purchase of such materials and supplies as are to be physically incorporated in and become a permanent part of the project being performed under this contract. The Contractor or Subcontractor shall furnish his suppliers with a completed certificate, in the prescribed form; a copy of which is attached to these specifications
- 7. Upon completion or termination of the work, the Contractor shall remove from the vicinity of the work all equipment and all temporary structures, waste materials and rubbish resulting from its operations, leaving the premises in a neat and acceptable condition. In the event of failure to do so, the same may be done by the Owner at the expense of the Contractor.
- 13. The Contractor shall pay for any broken utility lines, except where the utility company may be liable under the "Call Before You Dig" law. The Owner will only pay for relocations necessary to complete the work of this project.
- 14. In accordance with Executive Order 11246, the Contractor is obliged not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, creed, or national origin. This obligation not to discriminate in employment includes, but is not limited to, the following: hiring, placement, upgrading, transfer, demotion, recruitment, advertising, solicitation for employment training during employment, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, selection for training including apprenticeship, layoff, or

termination.

15. For all new underground facilities installed after January 1, 1989 which is practicable and for all repairs, replacements or modifications involving an exposure of existing underground facilities at least 100 feet longitudinally after January 1, 1989, of which the utility has knowledge of such exposure, the utility shall install a warning tape located above the facility, and keep appropriate records thereof. The minimum separation between the facilities or other engineering considerations make the minimum separation infeasible. The warning tape shall be durable, designed to withstand extended underground exposure, be of color assigned to the type of facility for surface markings in Section 16-345-5 (h) and durable imprinted with an appropriate warning or message.

# SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Cleaning Up: The Contractor shall at all times keep the site and work free from accumulations
of waste material or rubbish caused by his employees or work, or the employees or work of any
of his subcontractors.

On completion of the work, the Contractor except as otherwise expressly directed or permitted in writing, shall tear down and remove all temporary structures built by him; shall remove all rubbish and abandoned materials of all kinds from all Contract structures and from any grounds, and shall leave all the grounds which may have been affected by his/her operations in a neat and satisfactory condition. Except as noted, all materials salvaged shall be the property of the Contractor.

- 2. Act, Or Failure To Act, On Part Of Engineer Does Not Reduce Liability Of Contractor: Giving notice or failure to give notice; or acting as authorized in the preceding sections, or failure to so act, on the part of the Engineer; or any question as to the adequacy of the notice by the Engineer, or of his/her acts, as provided in those sections, shall not in any way relieve the Contractor from any part of his responsibility or liability for performing any and all of the acts and assuming any and all of the risks, duties and liabilities which the Contractor is obligated to perform or assume.
- 3. **Disposal of Surplus Materials**: The Contractor shall be responsible for the removal and satisfactory disposal of all surplus materials unless otherwise specified in the Detail Specifications. Town properties shall not be used for such disposal unless specifically authorized by the Engineer in writing. Property owners adjacent to the work may have indicated to the Town that their land might be available for disposal of surplus fill and this fact may be noted on the Contract Drawings. The Contractor shall, however, make his own arrangements for the use of such private lands and shall, if requested by the Engineer, evidence that such arrangements have been made before such use. Any required local permits shall be the responsibility of the Contractor.
- 4. **Utility Notification Prior to Excavation**: In accord with Public Act 77-350, the Contractor is required to notify any utility with facilities in the vicinity of the excavation at least two full days prior to excavation. Notification may be given by using the "Call Before You Dig" state wide, toll free telephone number, 811 or 1-800-922-4455., or if the contractor is registered, by e-ticket entry. Responsibility for proper notification of all utilities shall rest with the Contractor.

The Contractor shall contact the appropriate Town authorities concerning any public or semipublic events that may occur during the construction period and that may have an effect on his construction. The contractor alone shall be responsible for arranging his construction sequence to conform to any restrictions these events may impose on his schedule.

No claims for extras will be allowed because of any delays, caused by the imposed restrictions; however, additional time may be granted for completion of the work to compensate for any delays caused by said restrictions.

5. The State of Connecticut, Department of Environmental Protection and other involved State agencies shall have access and inspection rights to all parts of the work on this project.

6.	<b>Quantities of work</b> may be increased or decreased by up to 30% with payment to be based on actual quantities of work completed and the bid unit prices.